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Attorneys for Plaintiff

MICHAEL EWERT, on Behalf of Himself and
for the Benefit of All with Common or
General Interest, Any Persons Injured, and All
Others Similarly Situated,

Plaintiff,
vs.

EBAY, INC., DOES 1 to 100, inclusive.

Defendants.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
SAN JOSE DIVISION

T

No. 07-CV-2198 RMW
CLASS ACTION

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR
DAMAGES and INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

(1)  Injunctive Relief For Violation of the
Auction Act Pursuant to California Civil
Code 1812.602

(2)  Restitutionary Relief for Violation of
the Auction Act Pursuant to California Civil
Code Section 1812.603

(3)  For Enforcement and Civil Penalties
For Violation of the Auction Act Pursuant to
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Californta Civil Code Section 1812.600

(4)  Violation of the Consumers Legal
Remedies Act, California Civil Code Section
1750, et seq.

(5) Violation of the Unfair Competition
Law, California Business and Professions
Code Sections 17200, ef seq.

(6)  Unjust Enrichment/Common Law
Restitution

€] Comimon Count For Money Had and
Received

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

CERTIFICATION OF INTERESTED
ENTITIES OR PERSONS. L.R.3-16

L.
INTRODUCTION

1.  Plaintiff, Michael Ewert, brings this action on behalf of himself individually, as "a

erson” pursuant to the standing provisions of Civil Code Sections 1812.600, et seq. (hereinafter
alled, "Auction Act™), as a representative of the common or general interest pursuant to Federal

uie of Civil Procedure 23, and as a class representative for all those similarly situated in the United
tates hereinafter “CLASS.” The allegations pertaining to Plaintiff are made upon personal
nowledge. The allegations pertaining to eBay, Inc. and Does 1-100 (hereinafter collectively
eferred to as "defendant" or "eBay") are made upon information and belief, and formed after an
inquiry reasonable under the circumstances.

IL

NATURE OF THE ACTION

7 This action arises out of eBay’s unlawful, unfair, fraudulent and unconscionable tactics
whereby eBay uniformly represents in its “Online Auction Format” that customers can select an eBay

Luction to last for a specific period of time, and that the auction will begin when submitted. In

eality, the auctions do not begin when submitted and customers routinely receive less auction time
han they select and pay to receive. By way of example, if an eBay customer selects a five day
uction, and that auction is submitted by clicking “Start listing when submitted” on a Saturday at

:44 p.m., that auction will not start immediately, but it will end on the following Thursday at §:44
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.m. The eBay customer does not receive the full 120 hours of auction time selected and paid. eBay

oes not disclose to customers in its “User Agreement” or “Policies” that auctions will not be

jewable by prospective bidders for several hours (and up to 24 hours) from the time that eBay
ustomers submit their auction by clicking “Start listing when submitted.”

3. Alternatively, eBay'sacts can be construed as a uniform and material misrepresentation

y which it conceals the true terms, conditions, restrictions, and/or procedures of its auctions. Such

isrepresentations are made in an effort to fraudulently induce customers into buying auctions for

specific duration, all the while knowing that the auctions will not begin when submitted and will

ot be honored for the time selected. (See, http://pages.ebay .com/help/ find/questions/wheres-my-
item.html.)
4. In fact, eBay buries the fact that an auction item will not be open to bidders for the
urchased time frame in its "Help pages.” Only when a customer digs through eBay's "Help pages"
d manages to find the page titled, "The item I listed for sale isn't showing up when I search for it.
ow can I find it?" does eBay reveal that, " [i}f you've listed or re-listed an item in the past few
ours, or you've changed the title of an item, 1t might take some time (from two to six hours) for your
tem to appear in a keyword search or category listing."
See, http://pages.e‘oay.com/heip/ﬁndfquestions/where&my-item.htmi.)
S.  Upon information and belief, eBay has been aware of this fact through numerous

customer complaints made to eBay customer service. Due to eBay's lack of response in remedying

he widespread problem of auctions not showing when submitted and auctions not Being available
o accept bidders for the time frame purchased, eBay seliers have taken to posting their complaints
n eBay's very own discussion boards.

Examples of Consumer Frustration

Wakeup Ebay! This is a HUGE problem and you are not addressing it. I waited 6 %2
hours for 2 auctions to list on Sunday. By the time they listed, they were on the
SECOND PAGE!! I don't know how to make you understand this, but when people
check newly listed items, they KNOW from where they ieft off, and they do NOT
scroll down the page looking for an auction that pops up either hours or days later!
1 for one, look at my new listings on certain categories, and I do NOT search within
the categories as [ believe (or used to believe) I was on top of it by keeping up with
the new listings as they appeared. Iemailed ebay about this and got back such a load
of bs about "revising... html... characters... etc" and or my browser not up to speed...

CLASS ACTION - FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES and INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
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search it by number... Hello}? Lam the ONLY one with the "magic" number! I amnot
an idiot moron as you seem to think I am, I am not a dunce. 1 have been doing this
for 7 years and | KNOW HOW TO USE A SEARCH ENGINE! So today... I list an
item sort of "riding on the skirt tails" if you will of something that went for decent
money, and I had the same item. So striking while the iron was hot, I listed my
auction and IT IS NOWHERE TO BE FOUND!! Now this auction when it finally
lists will list on page 2 and will not have the exposure it deserves... the exposure ] am
PAYING FOR!!! Why is it that these missing auctions aren't showing up under
seller's other items? At least that would be something than sitting here with the clock
ticking... ticking,.. ticking... cha-ching cha-ching cha-ching... oh wait... that's ebay's
pockets... NOT MINE! 1am miffed!! Iam surprised to find this has been an ongoing
problem with no resolution. Shame on you!

(See, http://forums.ebay.com/db2/thread.jspa?tlueadIDm1000275679&start“~"360; Post No. 376.)

**$*$****************************$************
1 had the same probiem with a listing yesterday, I paid extra to start ata specific time
and it was in the search 12 hours later. Today I paid to have my auction start at 4p cst.
Well it is 11pm cst and still it is not in the search. Under the search for my LAST
item listed nothing has been put up since last night at 8pm pst, THE ITEMS SHOW
UP IN YOUR SELLING LIST BUT YOU CANNOT FIND THEM IN THE
SEARCH ........... WHAT IS GOING ON?7777777

{See, htip://fomms.ebay.comfdb2/thread.jspa‘?threadIDﬁ1000275679&3%%360; Post No.368.)

*******$********$$$***$$$*$*******************

1 listed 2 PS3 today, three hours ago, and it is still not in search results. What could
be the problem?

%See, http://forums.ebay .com/db2/thread j spa‘?messageil)m10070632’70&f0ruml})=143&x#1 0070
3270.)

********#****$**$$$**$***************$****&***

My item (nintendo Wii ) shows up on "my ebay" and is clocking down and I can’t
find it on a search. I need to resolve this. The longer I hold the item the more the
price is going to drop.

KSee, hitp:// forums.ebay.com/db2/thread jspa?messagelD=10071 21319&forumiD=143&x#10071

21319.)
**********&******$*$*$*$*$******$********$***$
Happens to me all the time, List for 24 hours can't find it for 8 hours after listed.
Listed another item last night for 3 days, still can't find it in search. 1 had enough of
the live chat, you feel like you talk 1o a computer, all the time you get the same
answers and the same links.
{See,
http://forums.ebay.com/db2/thread | spa?messagelD=1006784904& forumID=1 43&x#100678490

4: Post No.9.)

**************************************%******
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Im going to have to ask for my money back for this listing if it doesnt show up in the
search.. let alone the featured plus. I know the thread yesterday suggested that it can
take up to 8 hours, well its been more than double that, .or that if edited it could take

longer, well I have not edited the item in at least 17 hours..s0.. where the hell is it in
the search? What am | paying for?727777

See,

itp://forums.ebay.com/db2/thread.j spa?messagelD=1006784904& forumiD=1 A3&x#160678490
+.)

****************************************$****

] am very irritated that 1 have posted several things on Ebay last night and it has been
21 hours since and they still have yet to show up in searches.. I can sce them myself
in ‘My Ebay' But no one can search for my items..... Why are we paying to list
something for 5 days and we don't even get that many? It's ridiculous....

(See, hitp://orums.ebay.com/db2/thread ] spaZthreadiD=1000275679&start=0; Post No. 39

********$*****#****$**#**********************

Listed 3 items 5 hours ago still not showing up!! How many bids did 1 lose in 5 hours
on a Sunday?? Back bution don't work but I think e-bay knows that!! Fees keep going
up but do I get a refund for my items not showing up?? 1 listed a chevy van a few
weeks back and it took over 8 hours to be listed!! Charged me over $80.00 when it
was all said and done but that weekend 8 hour lost really hurt my sale but didn't get
a penny back!! Whats wrong with this picture?? Tried live help but they should call
it no help!! Can't even get to the today!! Contact help but it will be 2 days before 1
hear back from them with the same story, sorry for the inconveince, blah ,blah, blah.
Just think how much extra money e-bay makes from the millions of sellers whose
listings are delayed for hours!! As soon as 1 listed my items I was charged!! If T am
charged for 7 day auction I want 7 days!! I paid for it!!

See,
F;ttp:ﬂforums.ebay,comfdb?l/thread Jspa?messagelD=1007892122&foruml D=87&x#1007892122.)

*********************************&**********

What is ebay going to do about this??? It has been almost 24 hours and no one can
find my auction! 1 out of a 3 day auction? This is insane!!! [ want my money
back!!!

I(See, http://forums,ebay.com/de/thread.jspa’?thread[[)ml0002756’79&3ta1’t=160; Post 162.)

***************************#*$*********#****

SIX HOURS for a listing to show up!!! What, they have one of those computers with
a crank a monkey turns?7? Seems this problem is worse than just intermittent for the
same search terms, as other search factors also affect whether a listing shows up or
not. Guess they better start turning that crank fastert!!

(See, hﬁp://fomms.ebay.com/de/thread.jspa?th1*ead1])=1000275679&5’6&‘{*160; Post 194.)

*****$*********$$*$***$$******************k**
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6.  eBay has little incentive to address customer frustrations and consistently provides

"canned responses” to its customer’s complaints. Defendant's use of this unlawful practice serves

o allow the velocity of eBay auctions to proceed at a quicker pace thereby allowing it to collect more

[ustomer insertion fees and final value fee charges all the while padding its bottom line.

7. Importantly, eBay's web of deceit further entangles its sellers because eBay acts asan

Emtioneer and auction house in California without complying with the regulations set forth in
alifornia Civil Code Sections 1812.600, et seq. (hereinafter, "Auction Act"). In fact, eBay

hcknowledges in it's 10K Annual Report, filed on February 28, 2007 with the Securities and

xchange Commission, that: "[nJumerous states and foreign jurisdictions, including the State of
alifornia, where our headquarters are located, have regulations regarding ‘auctions'..." (See,
ttp://investor.ebay.com/sec.cfin.) eBay's conscious refusal to adhere to California’s Auction Act
onstitutes illegal activity and deprives Plaintiff, and all those similarly situated, of the specific
rotections required of auctioneers and auction houses in California, including but not limited to
equirements that it maintain a bond with the California Secretary of State, that it abide by the terms
fa written contract, and that it refrain from making substantial misrepresentations in conducting
uctioneering business, and refrain from misrepresenting the terms, conditions, restrictions or
procedures under which goods will be sold, among others.

8. eBay's deceptive acts and blatant misrepresentations to Plaintiff, and others similarly
situated, constitute unlawful activities under the Auction Act; unlawful, unfair, and fraudulent acts
pnder California's Unfair Competition Act (Bus. & Prof. Code §§17200, ¢t seq.); Consumer Legal
Remedies Act (hereinafter, "CLRA™), (Civ. Code §§ 1750, et seq.); and violations of other common
bnd statutory laws. Plaintiff therefore seeks to permanently enjoin defendant from violating the

Auction Act or other auction related laws, and to force Defendants to comply with the Auction Act

Fmd all related California laws. Plaintiff further seeks damages and restitution for injured persons,
civil penalties, attorneys fees, and investigation costs.

9. Defendant's unlawful actions have affected "[o]ver 768,000 professional sellers in the
U.S. [and] 1.5 million individuals [that] sell on eBay to supplement their incomes." {See,

lhttp://www.ebaymainstreet.com/states/california/.) Given that there are over two million persons
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|
similarly sitnated to the Plaintiff, and that eBay has garnered unlawful revenues, restitution will be

§fin excess of tens of millions if not hundreds of miltions of dollars for its unlawful actions for the past

four years.

10.  Pursuant to Civil Code Section 1782, on April 19, 2007, Plaintiff, Michael Ewert

otified Defendant in writing via certified mail return receipt requested on behalf of Plaintiff, and
11 those similarly situated, of the particular violations of Civil Code Section 1770 and other causes
f action as alleged in this complaint. Plaintiff demanded that eBay rectify the problems associated
with the practices and policies associated as set forth herein. Defendant’s response indicates no
intent to rectify the problems described in the original complaint and caused Plaintiff to file this
Amended Complaint. If defendant fails to rectify all the problems associated with the policies and

bractices described in this complaint and fails to give notice to all affected consumers of its intent

o act, Plaintiff reserves the right and will amend his complaint to seek actual and punitive damages,
estitution and all other relief available to him under Civil Civ. Code Section 1780, and all other
rovisions of California law.
111
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

11.  This court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Title 28 United
States Code section 1332 as recently amended by The Class Action Fairmess Act. The aggregate

mount claimed by the individual members of the proposed Class exceeds Five million dollars

wclusive of interest and costs and it is a class action in which the Plaintiff is a citizen of Colorado

bnd others similarly situated are citizens of other states and eBay isa citizen of California.

§2.  This court has personal jurisdiction over eBay because eBay has purposefully availed

itself of the privilege of conducting business activities within the State of California, because it is

corporation that conducts substantial business in the State of California, has its headquarters in
alifornia, has substantial offices in California, has significant business contacts in California, and
therwise resides in California. The conduct at issue occurred in California in that defendant's
omputers are located in California and/or the conduct is directed by eBay, eBay'sagents, and eBay's

Computers in California. For tax putposes, the place of sale of the transactions at issue in the

CLASS ACTION - FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES and INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
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complaint occurred in California. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 18, §1802(b)4).) Further the defendant has

ufficient minimum contacts with California, intentionally avails itself of California markets and

onducted the acts in question in California so as to render the exercise of jurisdiction by California
ourts and the application of California law to the claims of the Plaintiff and others similarly situated
ermissible under traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice.

13.  Venue is proper in this court pursuant to Title 28 United States Code section 1391

ecause defendant is subject to personal jurisdiction in the United States District Court for the
orthern District of California and resides in Santa Clara County within the Northern District, and
cause a substantial part of the acts, events, and/or omissions giving rise to the claims of Plaintiff
ad all other similatly situated occurred in the Northern District where eBay marketed and sold the
uctions at issue. Inaddition, venue is proper pursuant to Civil Code Section 1780(c) and the venue
ffidavit of plaintiff is attached hereto as Exhibit A. In addition, eBay’s user agreement provides as

ollows on jurisdiction and forum:

. Faw and Forum for Disputes - This Agreement shall be governed in all
respects by the taws of the State of California as they apply to agreements
entered into and to be performed entirely within California between
California residents, without regard to conflict of law provisions. Youagree
that any claim or dispute you may have against eBay must be resolved by a
court located in Santa Clara County, California, except as otherwise agreed
by the parties or as described in the Arbitration Option paragraph below. You
agree to submit to the personal jurisdiction of the courts located within Santa
Clara County, California for the purpose of litigating all such claims or
disputes.

Iv.
INTRADISTRICT ASSIGNMENT

14.  Assignment of this case to the San Jose Division is proper under Local Rule 3-2{c)
}because a substantial part of the acts, events, and/or omissions which give rise to the claims oceurred
in Santa Clara County.

V.
APPLICABLE LAW

15. The claims and issues asserted herein are governed by California law. Plaintiff seeks

lamages and equitable relief on behalf of himself and all others similarly sitvated under the laws of

CLASS ACTION - FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES and INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
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¥he State of California.

VI.
THE PARTIES
A.
Plaintiff

16.  Plaintiff, Michael Ewert, is a resident of Colorado and has been a registered eBay
customer since January 29, 2001 with the screen name Ewert21. Between January 6, 2007 and
Tanuary 19,2007, Plaintiff for due consideration purchased eBay's auctioneer/ auction house services
o auction goods on eBay's website. On January 6, 2007, at 8:44 PST, Plaintiff purchased auction
ime for Item No. 140071766870 (a Darrent Williams signed #27 Denver Rroncos Football Jersey
with a Certificate of Authenticity) from eBay. Plaintiff utilized and reasonably relied upon
defendant's "On-line Auction Format" and selected a five day duration for his auction from the drop
h:ox with the start time of "[s]tart listing when submitted." In fact, Mr. Ewert's auction did not start

when submitted, was not shown to prospective bidders until fater and he did not receive the full

ount of time that he paid for eBay to make the auction available for bids. Plaintiff's auction did
ot show for at least six hours from the time it was submitted. Plaintiff was harmed by this because
e relied upon and paid for a specific period of time and received less than what he paid eBay for

4 did not have his auction made available to bidders when he submitted his auction, eBay charged
d Plaintiff paid a total of $3.20 for the auction time including Bold Listing Fee, Gallery Fee,
icture Fee, Item Subtitle Fee, and Insertion Fee. At the end of the anction, eBay additionally
harged and collected a $5.59 Final Value Fee calculated from the item’s final auction price of
167.50. Plaintiff detrimentally relied on eBay's unlawful material representations in its "On-line
uction Format” that his auction item would be made available for bids when submitted and that he

ould receive the full duration of time that he selected and paid for - neither event occurred.

Likewise, on January 14, 2007, at 8:53 PST, Plaintiff purchased eBay's auctioneer/auction

ouse services to auction Item No. 1400774697469 (an Authentic Sewn Walter Payton #34 Chicago
Bears Jersey) from eBay. Plaintiff selected 2 five day duration for his auction in reasonable reliance

1 defendant's "On Line Auction Format" with the start time of "[s]tart listing when submitted” as

CLASS ACTION - FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES and INJUNCTIiVE RELIEF
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
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